
 

W81XWH93005001

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

30-105-04EXCEPTION TO SF 30
APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84

STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)
Prescribed by GSA

The purpose of this amendment is to:

1.)  Amend the response to question 47

1. CONTRACT ID CODE PAGE OF  PAGES

S

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

1 21

16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)

16C. DATE SIGNED

BY 09-Dec-2009

16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA15C. DATE SIGNED15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

(Signature of Contracting Officer)(Signature of person authorized to sign)

8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR  (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code) X W81XWH-10-T-0029

X 9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)
12-Nov-2009

10B. DATED  (SEE ITEM 13)

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

X The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offer  is extended, is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of the following methods: 
(a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted;
or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE 
RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN  
REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, 
provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.
IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE
 CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying 
office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor is not,   is required to sign this document and return copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter
 where feasible.)

10A. MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

0004

2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 5. PROJECT NO.(If applicable)

6. ISSUED BY

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

09-Dec-2009
CODE

USA MED RESEARCH ACQ ACTIVITY
820 CHANDLER ST
FORT DETRICK MD 21702-5014

W81XWH 7. ADMINISTERED BY  (If other than item 6)

4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.

CODE

See Item 6

FACILITY CODECODE

EMAIL:TEL:



W81XWH-10-T-0029 
0004 

Page 2 of 21 
 

SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION SF 1449 - CONTINUATION SHEET  
 
 
 
The following have been modified:  
        QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 
Solicitation W81XWH-10-T-0029 Questions and Responses: 
 
 
Question 1:   
 
Are the proposal volumes all supposed to be submitted via email only or do you also require hard binder copies? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government is requesting that three (3) hard copies of the offeror’s proposal(s) be furished, including an 
electronic copy via CD, that shall include one copy of each proposal volume in searchable PDF and one copy of 
each proposal volume in Microsoft Word 2003.  Please see revised solicitation “Proposal Content” section, 
paragraph 2.2. 
 
Question 2:   
 
Is the contractor required to be established in a office space at the time of contract award? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The contractor is required to be established in office space at the completion of the 15 day transition in period, 31 
January 2010. 
 
 
Question 3: 
 
Is this position a new position?  Or is someone already working in this position? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
The incumbent contractor is Data Solutions Technology, Incorporated (DST). 
 
 
Question 4: 
 
Due due date 11/30/09 pg 68 or 12/11/09 as listed on FBO? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Technical Questions were due 30 November 2009 and the proposal due date has been revised to 14 December 2009 
at 10:00 Fort Detrick, MD local time.  Please see revised solicitation “Proposal Content” section, paragraph 1.1. 
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Question 5: 
 
Would the Government please identify the anticipated award date for this solicitation? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Anticipated award date is Not Later Than 14 January 2010 
 
 
Question 6: 
 
Will the Government allow a combination of past performance projects from the prime and its major subcontractor? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
 
Question 7: 
 
Please identify the incumbent and whether it is eligible to submit a proposal as prime in response to this solicitation.  
 
Government Response: 
 
The incumbent Contractor is DST.  If DST is a Certified 8(a) Contractor, they can propose for the new requirement. 
 
Question 8: 
 
Do resumes and past performance count against the technical volume 40 page limit. 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
 
Question 9: 
 
Could you please clarify when the Draft Outgoing Transition Plan is required to be submitted with the proposal? 
 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
A Draft Outgoing Tranisition Plan is not required at the time of contract award.  Please see revised solicitation 
“Volume I, Non-Cost/Price Proposal” section, paragraph 3.1.1. 
 
 
 
Question 10: 
 
Will the new FDBDO Office require the same telephone/fax numbers and domain 
 name/account? 
 
Government Response: 
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Yes, these are required elements. 
 
Question 11: 
 
Will the incumbent retain the office furniture that is currently in the Government office space or will the new 
contractor be required to supply new furniture? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes, the incumbent will retain the current office furniture.  The new contractor will be required to provide new 
office furniture or new leased office furniture. 
 
Question 12: 
 
Will the Government accept electronic copies of proposals? In Amendment 2, Section 1.1 states, “Proposals must be 
emailed to justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil <mailto:justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil> , Subject W81XWH-10-T-
0029,” yet 2.2 requests “One (1) original and two (2) copies of each Proposal Volume shall be submitted.” Please 
provide clarification. 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government is requesting that three (3) hard copies of the offeror’s proposal(s) be furished, including an 
electronic copy via CD, that shall include one copy of each proposal volume in searchable PDF and one copy of 
each proposal volume in Microsoft Word 2003.  Please see revised solicitation “Proposal Content” section, 
paragraphs 1.1 and 2.2. 
 
Question 13:   
 
Can the Government please confirm that the development of a business plan, as mentioned in Task Objective 3.5, 
includes describing the structure of the business plan, not the full content of the plan, which will be created after 
award in coordination with the Government and other stakeholders? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government requires the full plan submitted with the offeror’s proposal. 
 
 
Queston 14:  
 
On the SF1449, the Option Periods jump from Option Period 2 – CMR to Option Period 4- Services. Please confirm 
this should be “Option Period 3-Services.” 
 
Government Response: 
 
CLIN 3001 should read “Option Period – 3 Services.”  Please see revised SF1449. 
 
Question 15: 
 
Section 4.1.1 of the SOW requests that the draft Incoming Transition Plan address, as one of the topics, the Offeror’s 
response regarding the Government-approved training and certification process. Would the Government please 
clarify the requirements for the Government-approved training and certification process related to the FDBDO 
work? 
 
Government Response: 

 

mailto:justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil
mailto:justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil
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Please see updated section 4.4.1. of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 16: 
 
Would the Government please remove the reference to “Government-Approved Training And Certification Process” 
from the outgoing transition requirements?  
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.4.1. of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 17: 
 
Please explain the “Applicable USAMRMC briefing and personnel in-processing procedures”. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.1.2. of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 18: 
 
Please explain the “Applicable USAMRMC debriefing and personnel out-processing procedures”. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.1.2. of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 19: 
 
Would the Government please remove this reference to “Orientation Phase And Program To Introduce Government 
Personnel, Programs, And Users To The Contractor's Team, Tools, Methodologies, And Business Processes” from 
the outgoing transition requirements? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.1.2. of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 20: 
 
Can support and hosting of website be provided remotely? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes.  The proposed solution shall be outlined in the offeror’s technical proposal  
Question 21: 

hould cost of new computers be factored in our total cost or should this cost be provided separately? 

overnment Response:

 
S
 
G  

he cost of all “Other Direct Costs” (ODC) such as but not limited to lease costs, computers, equipment, furniture 

uestion 22:

 
T
and supplies should be included in the offeror’s cost proposal as an ODC. 
 
Q  
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ection 1.1 states proposal must be emailed to Justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil
 
S  , but section 2.2 request 1 original 

overnment Response:

and 2 paper copies and CD copy. Please clarify. 
 
 
 
G  

lease see the response to Question #12. 

uestion 23:

 
P
 
 
Q  

an hardware infrastructure be leased? Or does USA Med Research ACQ want to purchase and own the equipment 

overnment Response:

 
C
after contract expires? 
 
 
G  

he new hardware can be leased.  The Government does not desire to assume ownership of the property at contract 

uestion 24:

 
T
completion. 
 
Q  

an a list of hardware and software inventory being replaced be provided? 

overnment Response:

 
C
 
G  

 list of DST’s current inventory will not be provided.  The amount of hardware and software needed for this 

uestion 25:

 
A
requirement is contingent upon the offerors proposed solution and level of effort. 
 
Q  

ill any portion of the required workshops be allowed to fall under an ODC cost reimbursement CLIN 

overnment Response:

 
W
(printing/binding of training materials, etc.)? 
 
G  

es, this is an allowable cost. 

uestion 26:

 
Y
 
Q  

he last sentence of section 2.0 of the Performance Work Statement states that estimate level of effort for this 

overnment Response:

 
T
contract is 6000 hours. Please confirm that this is for a period of one year. 
 
G  

es, this is for a one (1) year period.  Please see updated section 2.0 of the Performance Work Statement. 

uestion 27:

 
Y
 
Q  

OW Section 7.0 Place of Performance indicates the office must be open and staffed Monday through Friday during 
 
S
the hours of 0800-1700. The RFP requires the contractor to provide a staff person at the FDBDO information desk 
for phone calls and walk-ins. That leaves only two people to perform the other activities described in the SOW. We 
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believe an additional FTE is required to satisfactorily achieve the contract’s objectives and request that the level of 
effort of 6000 proposed hours (page 52 of 74) be increased to 8000 hours per year. 
 
Governement Response: 
 
The 6,000 hours referenced in the Performance Work Statement is the Government’s estimated level of effort.  The 
offeror should propose the level of effort that will efficiently and effectively complete the tasks provided in the 
Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 28:   
 
We request that the proposal submission be in PDF format in addition to Microsoft Word 2003. Printer definitions 
vary so styles, formatting and page counts may be altered or distorted. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see the response to Question #1. 
 
Question 29: 
 
We request that the incoming and outgoing transition plans, and resumes not be included in the page count. 
 
Government Response: 
 
The draft incoming transition plan and resumes will remain inclusive of the stated page limits.  A draft outgoing 
transition plan is not required with proposal submission. 
 
Question 30: 
 
Does the incumbent contractor retain rights to the existing software licenses or do they convert to the government at 
the end of the current contract for use on the follow-on contract? 
 
 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
The incumbent retains the rights to existing software licenses.  It is the contractor’s responsibility to obtain any 
software licenses required for their proposed solution. 
 
Question 31: 
 
How many telephone lines are being used on the current contract? Does the government anticipate the same number 
for the follow-on contract? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
There are currently 6 lines.  The number of lines necessary for the follow-on contract is contingent upon the 
contractors proposed solution and level of effort. 
 
Question 32: 
 
Will the selected contractor be responsible for hosting the FDBDO web site or will be government host the site with 
access by the contractor for updates? 
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Government Response: 
 
The selected offeror is responsible for hosting the FDBDO web site. 
 
Question 33: 
 
Does FDBDO have an existing exhibit booth that can be used on the follow-on contract? If not, will the new 
contractor be required to provide one. 
 
Government Response: 
 
The FDBDO does have an existing exhibit booth that is available for use by the successful awardee in performance 
of the contract.   
 
Question 34: 
 
Is the cover page, table of contents, executive summary, and resumes counted toward the 40 page limit? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
 
Question 35: 
 
Does the list of “Acronyms/Abbreviations used page count toward the 40 page limit. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
 
Question 36: 
 
Can the font size be smaller than 12 points for charts/graphs. 
Government Response: 
 
Yes, as long as the offeror’s proposal(s) are clearly legible. 
 
Question 37: 
 
Section 4 Performance Standards, of the  Draft QASP refers to “Transition Period C.3.6”.  We could not find a 
section C.3.6 in the PWS.  Does this refer to section 4.1 of the PWS? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see revised QASP paragraph 4. 
 
Question 38: 
 
Section 1.1 of Amendment 1 states that proposals must be emailed to justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil, and Section 
2.2 of Amendment 1 states that 1 original and 2 copies of each proposal volume shall be submitted along with a 
separate CD for each volume.   

 1.  Are you asking for 6 CD’s in total? 

 

mailto:justin.pickett@amedd.army.mil
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 2. Can you please clarify the delivery address? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Once CD should be submitted for each Proposal Volume (for which  there are 2).  Proposal Volume I is the Non-
Cost/Price Proposal, and Volume II is the Business Proposal. 
 
Delivery Address: 
 
USAMRAA 
820 Chandler Street 
Ft. Detrick, MD 21702 
ATTN:  Justin Pickett (USAMRAA Purple) 
 
Please see revised solicitation “Proposal Content” section, paragraph 1.1. 
 
Question 39:   
 
Section 8.0 of the PWS states that the contractor shall wherever possible utilize "web based wireless technology". 
Please explain this in further detail because "web based" usually refers to software solutions, and "wireless" usually 
refers to hardware connectivity solutions. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 8.0 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 40: 
 
Section 8.0 of the PWS described a "bulletin" which could be considered an electronic newsletter, and then goes on 
to say "This bulletin board...". Please explain further what is meant by "bulletin board". 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 8.0 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 41: 
 
Section 9.0 "FDBDO Web Site" and section 10.0 "Domain Name" state that the contractor will update and maintain 
the web site and domain name respectfully. Does the U.S. Army have the ownership of the current web site address 
known as www.fdbdo.com ? If not, then does the U.S. Army guarantee that the web site address will be transferred 
from the incumbent contractor to the incoming contractor without charge? Also does the U.S. Army have any 
arrangement with the incumbent contractor for the transfer of the web site address? If so, please state the terms of 
that arrangement. 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government does not own the web domain.  It is the offeror’s responsibility to assume any and all rights to the 
web domain. 
 
Question 42: 
 
Section 2.0 "Scope" of the PWS states that the office space will include space for certain individuals including a 
"representative from the Frederick County Maryland Office of Economic Development" and a "representative from 
Maryland TEDCO". It is our understanding that these two individuals currently share the same desk by alternating 

 

http://www.fdbdo.com/
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days that they are in the FDBDO office. Please confirm that under the new contract that these two individuals will 
continue to share the same desk through such a alternating manner. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Both individuals will share the same office space, however, both individuals will retain separate work stations 
within the office. 
 
Question 43: 
 
On the form 1449 continuation sheet, under Item No. 0001 it states "**Inclusive of a 15-day Transition-In Period". 
Section 4.1.1 "Incoming Transition Plan" of the PWS states that "The Contractor will provide for 15 days of 
incoming transition from contract to contract." If the contractor is proposing to utilize an office space other than the 
one the FDBDO currently occupies, do the above statements mean that the FDBDO must move into a completed 
space within 15 days of the date of award? (In other words, do these statements rule out the possibility of leasing 
unfinished space and having it built out which takes on average 120 days?) If not, what do these statements means 
exactly. 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes, it is the offeror’s responsibility to assume finished office space by the completion of the 15 day incoming 
transition period.   
 
Question 44: 
 
Section 5.1 "Performance Standards" of the PWS state that the "Transition Period C.3.6" "begins 15 days prior to 
date of contract award." How can there be a contractual obligation on the contractor before that contract is awarded? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 5.1 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 45: 
 
Section 2.2 of Amendment No. 1 states that an electronic copy of each volume of the proposal shall be provided on a 
CD "compatible with Microsoft Office 2003 applications". Is it acceptable to submit the proposal in pdf format that 
uses the free Acrobat Reader, which is not a Microsoft Office product? 
 
 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see the response to Question #1. 
 
Question 46: 
 
In section 5.1 "Performance Standards", the fifth block reads "Post FD Forecast data C.3.3". What does "FD" stand 
for? If "FD" stands for Ft. Detrick, then please explain in detail exactly what forecast data the FDBDO and it's 
contractor is expected to gather and publish. Specifically discuss whether this procurement forecast data will be for 
work occurring on Ft. Detrick itself, or if the data will for all activities that reside at Ft. Detrick regardless of where 
the work is to be preformed. 
 
 
Government Response: 
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FD is the acronym for Fort Detrick (FD).   Please see revised section 5.1.  The contractor is required to gather 
information concerning projected requirements by Medical Research and Material Command (MRMC) Mission 
partners and other Fort Detrick tenant organizations, and post to the FDBDO web site. 
 
Question 47: 
 
What date does the current FDBDO office lease expire? Is that lease extendable? Is that lease assumable on a month 
to month basis? What is the contact information for the current FDBDO landlord? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government does not possess any information on DST's lease. 
 
**Note:  Please refrain from contacting Ms. Sheila Washington regarding this information. 
 
Question 48: 
 
If you are awarded this contract will it eliminate your company from bidding on other opportunities at Fort Detrick? 
 
Government Response: 
 
No, any offeror may propose on any other opportunity at Ft. Detrick. This requirement will not limit the offerors 
ability to propose on any other requirements at Ft. Detrick. 
 
Question 49: 
 
Can you provide a price range for this opportunity? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government Cost Estimate is not being released. 
 
Question 50: 
 
Is the office space billable to the government? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes  
 
Question 51: 
 
Can the contractor who is awarded this contract lease the current office space and equipment? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see the response to Question #47. 
 
Question 52: 
 
Are payments only made by government credit card? 
 
Government Response: 
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As stated in the solicitation, payments will be made by Government credit card for this requirement. 
 
Question 53: 
 
How many single occupancy offices does the Government want Contractors to quote for? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The minimum square footage requirement for the entire facility is reflected in the Performance Work Statement.  It 
is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and effectively blue-print the office space, in accordance with the 
offeror’s proposed level of effort and the requirements listed in the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 54: 
 
What is the minimum square footage the Government requires for a single occupancy office? 

 
Government Response: 
The minimum square footage requirement for the entire facility is reflected in the Performance Work Statement.  It 
is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and effectively blue-print the office space, in accordance with the 
offeror’s proposed level of effort and the requirements listed in the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 55: 

 
What is the minimum configuration of office furnishings that the Government will accept for a single occupancy 
office? 
 
Government Response: 
The minimum square footage requirement for the entire facility is reflected in the Performance Work Statement.  It 
is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and effectively blue-print the office space, in accordance with the 
offeror’s proposed level of effort and the requirements listed in the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 56: 

 
How many dual occupancy offices does the Government want Contractors to quote for? 
 
Government Response: 
 
One (1) 
 
Question 57: 
 
What is the minimum square footage the Government requires for a duel occupancy office? 
 
Government Response: 
The minimum square footage requirement for the entire facility is reflected in the Performance Work Statement.  It 
is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and effectively blue-print the office space, in accordance with the 
offeror’s proposed level of effort and the requirements listed in the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 58: 
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What is the minimum configuration of office furnishings that the Government will accept for a dual occupancy 
office? 
 
Government Response: 

The minimum square footage requirement for the entire facility is reflected in the Performance Work Statement.  It 
is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and effectively blue-print the office space, in accordance with the 
offeror’s proposed level of effort and the requirements listed in the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 59: 
 
Would the Government accept a cubical arrangement for any of the positions? If so, which ones? 

 
Government Response: 
Yes, all soulutions will be considered, as long as the offeror meets the minimum facility requirements of the 
Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 60: 
 
Does the Government require a break room?   

a. If so, what is the minimum acceptable square footage? 
b. If so, does the Government require the break room to be plumed? 
c. If so, is the contractor responsible for stocking a breakroom? 

d. If so, would the Government consider adding an ODC line with a predetermined budget that the Contractor can 
draw from at the Governments request? 

 
Government Response: 
A break room is not part of the Government’s requirements. 
 
Question 61: 
 
Would the Government prefer a build out of their current location or new office space? 

a.  If the Government would prefer to stay, please provide a scale diagram of the current space and a 
diagram of the desired configuration. 
 

Government Response: 
The Government does not have a “preference”. 
  

 
 
 
Question 62: 
 
What is the last day of the current rental agreement and what is the anticipated award date? 
 
Government Response: 
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Please refer to the responses to Questions #5 and #47. 
 
Question 63: 
 
Can the current rental agreement be continued month to month to allow for adequate time to complete a build out at 
a new location prior to a move? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government will consider all proposed solutions. 
 
Question 64: 
 
What would need to be moved from the current office to a new office? 

a. Who is responsible for the coordination and cost of such a move? 
 
Government Response: 
 
The offeror is responsible for any leasing and/or purchase arrangements and the associated cost. 
 
Question 65: 
 
What does the Government require in terms of Conference Room capacity? 

a.  How many Conference Rooms and minimum acceptable square footage and seating capacity? 
 
Government Response: 
 
One (1) conference room with the capacity to seat 15 – 20 individuals shall be included in the offerors technical 
proposal.   Please see revised Performance Work Statement paragraphs 2.0 and 7.0.   The minimum square footage 
for the entire facility is listed in the Performance Work Statement.  It is the offeror’s responsibility to efficiently and 
effectively blue-print the office lay-out. 
 

Question 66: 
 
What is the estimated number of B&W printed pages/copies for the office per year? 
 
Government Response: 
 
75,000 
 
Question 67: 
 
What is the estimated number of color printed pages/copies for the office per year? 
 
Government Response: 
 
5,000 
Question 68: 
 
Please provide a budget for office supplies based on historical usage so that all contractors can 
base their pricing on the same assumption. 
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Government Response: 
Historically, the monthly office supply costs averaged $2,300 per year. 
 
Question 69: 
 
Section 3.3-- What database is currently in use? 
 
Government Response: 

Please see updated section 3.3 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 70: 
 
Section 3.4‐‐ What contact database system is currently in use? 

 
Government Response: 
Please see updated section 3.4 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
 
Question 71: 
 
Section 3.4-- Will the contractor be required to migrate existing data into the new contact 
database? 

 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 3.4 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 

Question 72: 
 
Is the contractor required to provide trade show/conference booth? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
 
Question 73: 
 
What type of web-based media is required? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 3.5 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 

Question 74: 
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Section 4.1.1-- Please provide a current list of Hardware/Software inventory? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Hardware and Software is contingent upon the offerors proposed level of effort 
 
Question 75: 
 
Please clarify the Governments expectations in section 4.5 Marketing material by “The Contractor will develop and 
distribute marketing materials promoting USAMRMC and Fort Detrick’s capabilities and the FDBDO.  “ 

a. Does the Government expect a 1 page, multi page (single or double sided), or Trifold 
document? 
b. If multipage, single or double sided, bound or unbound, how many pages? 
c. Does the Government want this material to be produced in-house or via a professional printer? 

 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.5 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 

Question 76: 
 
What is the minimum number of contractor personnel allowed to travel to a conference? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see updated section 4.6 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 

Question 77: 
 
So that the Government can make a fare assessment of bids, please clarify the Governments expectations are with 
ref. to section 4.6 Conferences and Symposia? 

a. Does the Government want the contractor to have a booth and be a presenter or an attendee? 
b. How many contractors are required to attend each event? 
c. Which 6 events does the Government wish to be quoted on?  

 
Government Response: 
 
The Government does not have an advanced conference schedule.  Historically, the FDBDO contractor attended a 
minimum of six (6) conferences per contract year.  Each conference will be assessed on a case-by-case basis (i.e. 
requirements of contractor attendance will be furnished by the COR prior to the conference).  All allowable 
conference expensed will be on a cost reimbursable basis.  See revised Performance Work Statement paragraph 4.6. 
Question 78: 
 
As this is a FFP procurement how will the government make adjustment for changes in travel 
and attendance costs/fee’s if prices go up after the initial quote? 

 
Government Response: 
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In the base period and each Option Period, there are Other Direct Cost (ODC) CLIN’s that are COST type in nature, 
and may be adjusted as required by the Contracting Officer. 
 
Question 79: 
 
Section 8.0--  Does the government wish to be quoted for desktops and or laptops?  

a. How many each and what is the minimum configuration? 
 
 

Government Response: 
See revised solicitation section 8.0. 
 
a.)  Configuration is contingent upon the offeror’s proposed solution and level of effort. 
 
Question 80: 
 
Who currently hosts the FDBDO website? 

 
Government Response: 
 
The incumbent, DST. 
Question 81: 
 
Is hosting the FDBDO website required? 

 
Government Response: 
 
Yes 
Question 82: 
 
Are the key personnel resumes counted against the 40 page limit? 

 
Government Response: 
Yes 
 
 
Question 83: 
 
Would the government consider utilizing a variation of a Firm Fixed Price or a Time and 
Materials type of contract?  

 
Government Response: 
 
This requirement will result in a Firm Fixed Price contract, and will also utilize COST type ODC CLINs.   
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Question 84: 
 
Please clarify what the Government means by “fixed fee payments, award fee payments” as 
referenced in section 8. Documenting Performance, a. Acceptable Performance? Specifically, 
how will Award Fees be calculated? 

 
Government Response: 
 
See revised QASP paragraph 8.0. 
 
Question 85: 
 
Please clarify what the Government means by “contract payment deductions, fixed fee 
deductions, award fee nonpayment” as referenced in section 8. Documenting Performance, b. 
Unacceptable Performance? Specifically, how will these deductions be calculated? 

 
Government Response: 

See revised QASP paragraph 8.0 
 

Question 86: 

Will the Government extend the due date to COB 12/18/09? 

Government Response: 

The proposal due date has been extended until 14 December 2009 at 10:00 local Fort Detrick time.  Please see 
revised solicitation “Proposal Content” section, paragraph 1.1. 
 
 
 
Question 87: 
 
Are you interested in leasing or owning the new furniture or equipment for the life of the contract?  
 
Government Response: 

It is the offerors responsibility to supply new office furniture or new leased office furniture.  The Government will 
no assume ownership over such supplies. 
 
Question 88: 
 
The RFP states in section 2.0 the office space will accommodate a rep from MD TEDCO, and Frederick Co.  
Economic Development.  Can these two reps share office space on a part time basis, or would you like them each to 
be facilitated with their own office? Section 7.0 states …be adequately furnished to provide space for one Federal 
Government personnel and two private sector economic development specialist.  Can you please clarify exactly how 
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many people the office space needs to accommodate full-time on a daily basis vs. part time in addition to the 
proposed personnel by the offeror?  
 
Government Response: 

 
1.)  Yes, the representatives can share an office space. 
 
2.)  See revised section 7.0. 
 
Question 89: 
 
Can the experience of your subcontractor also be considered as relevant past performance for the required 3 Past 
performances as long as the Prime contractor has at least one past performance?   (example:  the Prime may have 
excellent Management or BD past performance and bring on a sub with excellent training capabilities and past 
performance). 
 

Government Response: 
Yes 
 
Question 90: 
 
Conduct training workshops as required for USAMRMC and Fort Detrick, small businesses, prime contractors, 
academia and service providers 
Since the contract ids FFP, how many of these sessions are envisioned? 
Is it possible to venture an estimate of number of attendees in each session? 
Does each session need to be exclusive to one firm or group or can multiple companies/entities participate? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Historically, two (2) training workshops have been held per quarter (eight (8) per contract year).  
The attendance has been limited to 20 individuals per workshop.  The workshop sessions have 
not been exclusive to one firm.  Individuals from multiple companies/entities have been present.  
Please see revised Performance Work Statement paragraph 3.2. 

 
Question 91: 
 
Provide information on procurement opportunities and resources  
Are there any limitations to the range of participants? 
In what format and condition is the current list of contractors? 
Will the new system reside on Government equipment or Contractor owned equipment? 
Who will have access to the database, (who are the users?) 
How is access to be provided to the users? 
Will there need to be an online, real-time access to the database by the Government representative?  
 
 
Government Response: 
 
1.)  No. 
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2.) The current contacts are listed name, title, phone etc. 
 
3.)  Contractor owned or leased equipment. 
 
4.)  Government Personnel and all FDBDO personnel. 
 
5.)  Upon request. 
 
6.)  No. 
 
Question 92: 
 
Provide a business plan describing how the Contractor will successfully execute the Performance Requirements 
Summary 
Is there a clear definition of “Performance Requirements Summary” and what it should include? 
 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
See updated section 5.1 of the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 93: 
 
This office space shall not exceed 2400 square feet, be adequately furnished with new office furniture 
What if the contractor wishes to obtain a larger space to be used by non-FDBDO related activity? 
Why does the furniture have to be new? 
 
 
Government Response: 
 
1.)  The Government’s requirement is for a space NTE 2400 square feet. 
 
2.)  That is the Government requirements, see updated section 2.0. 
 
Question 94: 
 
Since this is an FFP contract, how can the contractor determine the scope and quantity of marketing material? Is this 
part of the ODC’s? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Yes, marketing material is part of ODC’s 
 
Question 95: 
 
Can we lease current space? 
 
Government Response: 
 
Please see the response to Question #47. 
 
Question 96: 
 
If office space is not available at starting date until 90-120 days. Can we use temporary space? 
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Government Response: 
 
No 
 
 
Question 97: 
 
The proposal says “…Contractor shall staff an FDBDO information desk for phone calls and walk-ins.”  Is this an 
additional CLIN To be proposed for personnel in addition to the Personnel requested on page 63 Section 3. 
Contractor Representatives? 
 
Government Response: 
 
No 
 
Question 98: 
 
The government requires that vendors submit only 1 proposal.  Would the government accept the inclusion of 
unevaluated options within this single proposal submission with the evaluated content meeting the mandatory 
criteria of this solicitation?  
 
Government Response: 
 
The Government will not accept the inclusion of unevaluated options. 
 
 
  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 


